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For the County of Santa Barbara, Anacapa Division 

Ernesto c., an individual, 

Plaintiffs, 

v. 

Franciscan Friars of California, Inc.; Old 
Mission Santa Barbara, and Does 3 
through 100, Inclusive. 

Defendants. 
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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT 
FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE 
RELIEF FOR: 

1. PUBLIC NUISANCE 
2. NEGLIGENCE 
3. NEGLIGENT SUPERVISION/ 

FAILURE TO WARN; 
4. NEGLIGENT 

HIRlNG/RETENTION 
5. FRAUD; 
6. FIDUCIARY/CONFIDENTIAL 

RELATIONSHIP FRAUD AND 
CONSPIRACY; 

7. BREACH OF FIDUCIARY 
DUTY; 

8. NEGLIGENT FAILURE TO 
WARN, TRAIN, OR EDUCATE 
PLAINTIFFS; 

9. INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF 
EMOTIONAL DISTRESS; 

10. NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF 
EMOTIONAL DISTRESS; 

11. VIOLATION OF BUSINESS & 
PROFESSIONS CODE § 17200; 

12. FRAUD AND DECEIT; 
13. PREMISES LIABILITY. 

Based upon information and belief available to Plaintiff Emesto C. at the time of the 

26 filing of this First Amended Complaint, Plaintiff makes the following allegations: 

27 PARTIES 

28 1. Plaintiff Emesto C. is an adult male over the age of 26. Plaintiff was a minor residing 
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1 in the county of Santa Barbara at thc time of the sexual abuse alleged herein. 

2 2. Defendant Doe IIFranciscan Friars of California, Inc. ("Defendant Franciscan Friars" 

3 or "the Franciscans" or "Defendant Order") is a Roman Catholic Order and a nonprofit public 

4 benefit corporation organized for religious purposes and incorporated under the laws of the 

5 State of California, doing business in Santa Barbara. Defendant Order is the religious order 

6 that owned and/or operated the properties in Santa Barbara - St. Anthony's Seminary ("St. 

7 Anthony's") and Doe 2/01d Mission Santa Barbara - where many of Does 1 -100's other 

8 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents sexnally assaulted children. 

9 2.1 Defendant Doe 2/01d Mission Santa Barbara ("Defendant Old Mission"), also known 

10 as Saint Barbara Parish, is a Roman Catholic church or parish located in Santa Barbara, 

11 California. Doe 2 is the church or parish where the perpetrators were assigned, or in 

12 residence, or doing supply work, or volunteering at, or visiting during the period of wrongful 

13 conduct. Does 1 through 100 are sometimes referred to collectively as "Defendants." 

14 2.2 The Perpetrator, Franciscan Father Dave Johnson, was at all times relevant an 

15 individual residing and/or doing business in the City and County of Santa Barbara, 

16 California, and was a Roman Catholic priest, member, religious brother, employee, agent 

17 and/or servant of the Franciscans and/or Defendant Old Mission and/or Does 3-100. During 

18 the dates of abuse, the Perpetrator was assigned, or in residence, or doing supply work, or 

19 volunteering, or visiting at Defendant Old Mission, and was under the direct supervision, 

20 employ and control of the Franciscans and/or Defendant Old Mission and/or Does 3-100. 

21 3. Defendant Does 3 through 100, inclusive, are individuals and/or business or 

22 corporate entities incorporated in and/or doing business in California whose true names and 

23 capacities are unknown to Plaintiff who therefore sues such defendants by such fictitious 

24 names, and who will amend the First Amended Complaint to show the true names and 

25 capacities of each such Doe defendant when ascertained. Each such Defendant Doe is legally 

26 responsible in some manner for the events, happenings and/or tortious and unlawful conduct 

27 that caused the injuries and damages alleged in this First Amended Complaint. 

28 4. The Perpetrator and/or each Defendant were and/or are the agent, servant and/or 
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1 employee of the Franciscans and/or Defendant Old Mission and/or Does 3 -100. The 

2 Perpetrator and/or each Defendant were acting within the course and scope of his, her or its 

3 authority as an agent, servant and/or employee of the Perpetrator and/or other Defendants. 

4 The Perpetrator and/or the Franciscans and/or Defendant Old Mission and/or Does 3 -100, 

5 and each of them, are individuals, corporations, partnerships and other entities which engaged 

6 in, joined in and conspired with the other wrongdoers in canying out the tortious and 

7 unlawful activities described in this First Amended Complaint, and the Perpetrator and/or 

8 each Defendant ratified the acts of the Perpetrator and/or the Franciscans and/or Defendant 

9 Old Mission and/or Does 3 -100 as described in this Complaint. 

10 

11 BACKGROUND FACTS APPLICABLE TO ALL COUNTS 

12 5. The Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents 

13 committed acts of Childhood Sexual Abuse in Santa Barbara before, during, and after the 

14 time Ernesto attended St. Anthony's. The Franciscan corporate practice of concealing the 

15 identities, propensities, and current assignments andlor residences of these perpetrators has 

16 enabled and empowered such men to sexually assault and/or continue to place at risk 

17 countless children around the various locations in the Western United States and throughout 

18 the world where these Franciscans have conducted their business for nearly a century, 

19 including but not limited to Franciscan friaries, missions, parishes, retreat centers and other 

20 communities in the western States of Arizona, California, Missouri, Nevada, New Mexico, 

21 Oregon, Utah and Washington, and in countries such as Africa, Brazil, El Salvador, 

22 Guatemala, Israel, Italy, Mexico, Peru, the Philippines and Thailand. Finally, an unknown 

23 number of Defendants' fonner pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, whose propensities 

24 Defendants have been aware of for years but have disclosed to no one, continue to sexually 

25 assault and/or place at risk countless children around these locations as well as at numerous 

26 other locations, such as in the State ofldaho, where these former Franciscans now reside. 

27 I II 

28 I I I 
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1 The Origin of the Explosion of Franciscan Sex Crimes in Santa Barbara in the 1960s 

2 6. Franciscan perpetrators have been sexually assaulting children in Santa Barbara since 

3 

4 

5 
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27 

28 

at least 1936. During this time at least forty-four (44) pedophilic and/or ephebophilic Roman 

Catholic priests or religious brothers have been assigned to work at and were living at and/or 

visiting various locations around Santa Barbara County, including but not limited to St. 

Raphael's Church in Goleta, San Roque, Our Lady of Guadalupe, Our Lady ofMt. Cannel in 

Montecito, and the adjoining properties of St. Anthony's and the Mission. Twenty-seven 

(27) of those priests or religious brothers were or are Franciscans. 

Although Franciscan priests and Religious brothers abused Santa Barbara children 

mnch earlier in the 20'h Century, there was an explosion of Franciscan sex crimes against at 

least sixty-two (62) local children beginning in the early 1960s. That explosion was triggered 

by events involving the Franciscans in the Diocese of San Diego in the early 1950s. 

Prior to Santa Barbara the Franciscans used parishes in communities that at the time 

were on the outskirts of the Diocese, such as Banning and Beaumont, as havens to send their 

problem priests and Religious Brothers. Eventually the Diocese ended the Franciscans' 

conduct. According to a letter written by the Bishop of San Diego on April 26, 1950: 

"During the thirteen years since this Diocese was erected, to my own 
personal knowledge, the Saint Barbara Province of the Franciscan 
Fathers has used this Diocese as a dumping ground for their moral, 
mental and physical problems. It became necessary for me some 
time ago to demand the withdrawal of one misfit after another." See 
Exhibit "A" (Emphasis added). 

The Bishop was so frustrated with the Franciscans that he commenced the process of 

applying to the necessary religious bodies in Rome to evict the Franciscans from the parishes 

in the Diocese of San Diego. It would appear the Bishop eventually succeeded, and 

sometime in the 1950s the Franciscans made Santa Barbara their new dumping ground for 

Franciscan perpetrators. BegiIlIling in the late 1950s the Franciscans began sending the first 

of at least twenty-six (26) Franciscan perpetrators to Santa Barbara following their expUlsion 

from the Diocese. Those perpetrators are identified below in the decades they first appeared 

and continued to reside in or visit Santa Barbara based on infomlation known to date: 
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1 I - Fr. Owen Da Silva (1930s) 
2 - Brother Berard Connolly (1940s, 1980s - 1990s) 

2 3 - Fr. Martin McKeon (1950s - 1960s) 
4 - Fr. Edward Henriques (1960s) 

3 5 - Fr. Mario Cimmarrusti (1960s - 1970s) 
6 - Fr. Mel Bucher (1960s) 

4 7 - Fr. Forrest McDonald (1960s - 1970s) 
8 - Br. Kevin Dunne (1960s - 1970s) 

5 9 - Br. Sam Cabot (1960s-1980s) 
10 - Fr. Edmund Austin (1970s) 

6 11 - Fr. Gus Krumm (1970s - 1980s) 
12 - Fr. Paul Conn (1970s - 1980s) 

7 13 - Fr. Dave Johnson (1970s - 1980s) 
14 - Fr. Joseph Prochnow (1970s - 1980s) 

8 15 - Br. Matteo. Guerrero (1970s, 1990s - 2000s) 
16 - Fr. Robert Van Handel (1970s -1990s) 

9 17 - Fr. David Carriere (1970s - 2000s) 
18 - Fr. Steve Kain (1980s) 

10 19 - Fr. Philip Wolfe (I 980s) 
20 - Pre-novItiate candidate Ed Byrom (1980s) 

11 21 - Pre-novitiate candidate Tom Thing (1980s) 
22 - Fr. Chris Berbena (I 980s) 

12 23 - Fr. Remy Rudin (l980s - 1990s) 
24 - Br. Gerald Chumik (2000s) 

13 25 - Pedro Vasquez (2000s) 
26 - Fr. Claude Riffel (1941-44, 1975-76) 

14 27' - Fr. Fr. Alexander Manville (1960-73). 

15 By the 1960s if not sooner these corrupt seeds planted by the Franciscans began bearing 

16 poisonous fruit as Franciscan perpetrators abused Santa Barbara children at a horrifying rate. 

17 At least eighty-five (85) children have been sexually abused in Santa Barbara by Roman 

18 Catholic priests or religious brothers since 1936. Sixty-two (62) of those children were 

19 abused by Franciscan priests or religious brothers since 1960. The confirmed number of 

20 victims and Franciscan perpetrators grows each year. 

21 The consequences of the Franciscans' continuing corporate practices with regards to 

22 Franciscan perpetrators have been disastrous both for local children, and for a society that 

23 continues to bear the financial burden of the psychological fallout for abuse survivors. Abuse 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

L This number does not include at least two (2) lay perpetrators the Franciscans allowed to sexually 
assault seminarians or boys choir members on the grounds ofSt. Anthony'S among other locations. 
Specifically, during the 1970s st. Anthony's faculty member Francisco Moreno sexually assaulted at least 
one student in Moreno's office, and invited an unknown number of men from the community to assault the 
student as well. Additionally, in the 1980s perpetrator Fr. Robert Van Handel allowed and enabled his 
pedophilic friend, Gerald Heather, to sexually assault at least three members of the Santa Barbara Boys 

Choir. 
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1 survivors often engage in addictive, self-destructive, and, unfortunately, often criminal 

2 behavior as they deal with the psychological scars caused by childhood sexual abuse. These 

3 behaviors in turn result in things such as divorce proceedings on court calendars, substance 

4 abuse, arrests, and incarcerations, all of which are paid for by the common taxpayer rather 

5 than by the truly culpable but tax-exempt organizations that protected the perpetrators. The 

6 evidence of the Franciscans' culpability in this regard is overwhelming. 

7 
THE FRANCISCANS' CONTINUING REFUSAL TO PUBLICLY IDENTIFY ALL 

8 OF THEIR CURRENT OR FORMER PEDOPHILIC MEMBERS HAS CREATED A 
DEADLY ENVIRONMENT FOR TODA Y'S CHILDREN 

9 

10 7. Time and again the Franciscans have had the opportunity to end the cycle of abuse by 

11 reporting perpetrators to law enforcement, and by warning the general public when a 

12 Franciscan has been accused of sexually assaulting a child. Tragically, the Franciscans' 

13 ongoing efforts to protect their pedophilic members, and to protect the corporation's financial 

14 interests, establish a continuing pattern of conduct causing new harm to today's children, new 

15 trauma to adult survivors of Franciscan childhood sexual abuse, and causing the continuing 

16 financial burden to a society paying for the resulting psychological fallout. 

17 8. Since at least 1964 the Franciscans have known their perpetrators were sexually 

18 assaUlting Santa Barbara children, and of the fact any child exposed to their agents was at a 

19 heightened risk of being sexually assaulted. Since at least 1964 the Franciscans have been 

20 concealing these crimes, and shielding their criminal members from discovery. Sadly, even 

21 with the global settlement of the 2003-2006 litigation, the Franciscans have not changed their 

22 ways. The following are examples only of some of the most recent known Franciscan 

23 conduct placing today's children at risk. These examples illustrate the Franciscans' conduct 

24 remains a present day threat to children wherever the Franciscans conduct their business: 

25 • In July of2003, the Franciscans assigned an admitted perpetrator - Father Gus 

26 Krumm - to a Sacramento parish next door to a school without any warning to the 

27 community. One Franciscan priest readily admitted he was aware of Father Krumm's prior 

28 abuses but did not think it was appropriate to share such information with parishioners. 
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1 Despite the fact the Franciscans claimed Father Krumm was forbidden contact with young 

2 children, he did in fact have direct contact with young children while at this assignment. 
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• In January 2004 it was revealed that the Franciscans had assigned perpetrator 

Brother Kevin Dunne to a Franciscan-run parish in Phoenix, St. Mary's Basilica. The 

Franciscans warned neither the parishioners nor the community of the risk Dunne posed, and 

the Phoenix community had no means of identifYing Dunne as a perpetrator as - thanks to the 

Franciscans never having reported Dunne's crimes to law enforcement - he had never been 

prosecuted and is not a registered sex offender. Thus, the fact Dunne had raped at least one 

St. Anthony's student, and the fact the Franciscans had settled a claim made by that student, 

was known only to the Franciscans. The parish manager stated the Franciscans had never 

advised him of Dunne's criminal conduct, and that "they probably should have." 

• In July 2004 the Franciscans admitted - albeit only after a reporter from the 

Dallas Morning News made the facts public - that yet another predator had been calling the 

Old Mission Santa Barbara home for over two years. Specifically, in the early to mid-1970's 

Franciscan Brother Gerald Chumik assaulted at least one victim in Canada. Canadian 

authorities attempted to prosecute Brother Chumik in the 1990s, but Chumik fled to the 

United States. The Franciscans successfully and secretly harbored Brother Chumik, a 

fugitive from justice, behind the walls ofthe Mission for over two years. The Franciscans 

provided no warning to the public, much less to neighboring schools, of the threat Brother 

Chumik posed until the Dallas Morning News published the truth about Chumik. 

• In July 2005, the Franciscan Vicar Provincial, Brother Tom West, admitted 

Mission resident, Franciscan Pedro Vasquez, had been accused of sexually assaulting a 

person West described as a "young man." The Franciscans had allowed Vasquez to live at 

the Mission for three years without any warning to the community, and admitted to this fact 

in July of 2005 only when they knew its publication was inevitable. 

• In 2005, the former rector of St. Anthony's, Father Xavier Harris, testified that 

while he was assigned at St. Williams in Los Altos in 2001, a well-known Franciscan 

perpetrator, Father Steve Kain, assisted there as well. Father Harris did not warn any of the 
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1 parishioners of Fathcr Kain's propensities, nor, to his knowledge, did any other Franciscans 

2 warn any parishioners about Father Kain. With no shortage of victims who were unaware of 

3 the risk he posed, Father Kain abused again. Father Harris testified that Father Kain was then 

4 forced to stop assisting at St. Williams due to the abuse allegations, and was transfen'ed to St. 

5 Boniface in San Francisco. Once again, Father Harris testified he had no knowledge of any 

6 warnings to parishioners at St. Boniface regarding Father Kain's propensities. 

7 • In late 2006 a victim spoke with Father Virgil Cordano at the Mission and 

8 informed Cordano he had been raped in 1976 by a Franciscan religious brother, Brother 

9 Mateo Guererro. Cordano did not act surprised at this information, admitted there had been 

10 other complaints against Mateo, and admitted that Mateo had been transferred as a result. To 

11 date, the Franciscans have taken no steps to make this information public, no steps to 

12 determine whether there are any other victims of Mateo who have not come forward, no steps 

13 to notifY the communities in which Mateo has been assigned over the course of his career as a 

14 Franciscan, and no steps to warn the current community where Mateo is assigned. 

15 • From approximately 1994 to at least 2007 the Franciscans assigned another 

16 admitted perpetrator - Fr. Mel Bucher - to Old Mission San Luis Rey. Fr. Bucher sexually 

17 assaulted at least one adolescent boy in Oregon in the early 1970s. Despite this admission, 

18 the Franciscans allowed Fr. Bucher to manage the Mission San Luis Rey retreat center. The 

19 retreat center conducts retreats for, among others, high school-aged children, including 

20 overnight retreats for students from, among other locations, Mater Dei High School in Santa 

21 Ana. At least one current Franciscan and former Mater Dei faculty member has stated he 

22 would not discuss the allegations of abuse by Fr. Bucher with Mater Dei faculty or 

23 administrators because he does not "see any purpose being served in that." The Franciscans 

24 have never warned the families of these students of Fr. Bucher's histOIY of abuse. 

25 • In February 2009, Father Claude Riffel was accused of sexually assaulting a 

26 boy at another Franciscan seminary, St. Francis Minor Seminary in Troutdale, Oregon, in the 

27 early 1960s. Riffel was dean of discipline for the school when he would call the teenager out 

28 of class on the pretext of assigning work and then abuse him. To date, the Franciscans have 
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1 taken no steps to make this infornlation public, and no steps to deteIDline whether there are 

2 any other victims of Riffel who have not come forward. The Franciscans also have taken no 

3 steps to notifY the communities in which Riffel has been assigned during his career as a 

4 Franciscan, including but not limited to the Santa Barbara community where from 

5 approximately 1941-44, and again from 1975-76, Riffel was assigned to St. Anthony's and 

6 worked with boys the same age as those he is accused of abusing at the seminary in Oregon. 

7 • In June 2009 Franciscan Father Alexander Manville was accused of the sexual 

8 abuse of an approximately eight-year-old boy in 1992-93. To date, the Franciscans have 

9 taken no steps to make this information public, and no steps to deteIDline whether there are 

10 any other victims of Manville who have not come forward. The Franciscans also have taken 

11 no steps to notifY the communities in which Manville has been assigned over the course of 

12 his career as a Franciscan, including but not limited to the Santa Barbara community where 

13 for approximately thirteen years, from 1960-73, Manville served on the faculty at Bishop 

14 Diego High School. 

15 Such action and inaction by the Franciscans has and will continue to produce 

16 disastrous results, as evidenced by the case of Fr. Louis Ladenburger. Ladenburger left the 

17 priesthood and the Franciscan order in 1996. However, early in his career as a Franciscan 

18 Ladenburger was treated for what fOIDler St. Anthony's rector and Franciscan Provincial 

19 Minister, Mel Jurisich, has described only as "inappropriate professional behavior and 

20 relationships." Such vague terms are standard procedure for the Franciscans when describing 

21 acts of childhood sexual abuse by their priests and religious brothers. After sending 

22 Ladenburger for treatment for his criminal conduct twice in the 1980s, the Franciscans 

23 allowed him to continue to work as a priest, including working at high schools. After another 

24 psychological review in 1993 the Franciscans were sufficiently concerned to restrict 

25 Ladenburger's ministry. However, at no time did the Franciscans report Ladenburger's 

26 criminal acts to law enforcement. At no time did the Franciscans warn any families or 

27 communities where Ladenburger had worked or was working as a priest. As a result, when 

28 he left the priesthood nearly twenty-years after the Franciscans first leamed of and began to 
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1 conceal the risk he posed to children, Ladenburger had never been convicted of a sex crime, 

2 was not a registered sex offender, and only the Franciscans were aware of his pedophilic 

3 propensities. An unknown number of children have been sexually assaulted by Ladenburger 

4 as a result. In May of2007 Ladenburger was arrested for sexually assaulting several children 

5 in Idaho. 

6 When first contacted shortly after Ladenburger's arrest the Franciscans denied having 

7 any record of past abuses by Ladenburger. After this initial denial, Fr. Jurisich finally 

8 admitted to Ladenburger's sordid history, and the Franciscans' knowledge since the 1980s of 

9 the risk he posed to children. Ladenburger has since pleaded guilty to lewd conduct with two 

10 boarding school students, and on March 24, 2008, was sentenced to five years in prison. The 

11 sentencing judge, the Honorable John Luster, found Ladenburger's conduct so severe that he 

12 rejected a joint request by the prosecution and the defense of a suspended sentence. 

13 Ladenburger has admitted he is a sex addict. These latest victims are further evidence of the 

14 continuing threat to all children posed by the Franciscans' refusal to warn the public of their 

15 current and former members who have been accused of sexual abuse. 

16 Four months after the Franciscans first denied then admitted they knew about the 

17 threat posed by Ladenburger, they were at it again. One would hope that after decades of 

18 Franciscan sexual abuse and cover-ups, at some point - perhaps, for instance, now that the 

19 number of confinned Santa Barbara victims of Franciscan childhood sexual abuse has risen 

20 to sixty-three - the Franciscan hierarchy would finally reconsider the corporation's horribly 

21 flawed strategy oflying about and refusing to identifY Franciscan priests and brothers accused 

22 of sexual abuse. One would hope that after seeing today's children continuing to be 

23 victimized as a result of this failed corporate strategy they would finally recognize that for the 

24 sake of both past and future victims, it was time to tell the truth. However, as evidenced by 

25 their conduct toward survivor Maria Cunningham, the Franciscans have leamed nothing from 

26 the sad events involving Ladenburger, much less from their sordid history. Instead, they 

27 continue to re-victimize survivors of Franciscan sexual abuse, to create new victims, and to 

28 increase the resulting financial burden on society, by continuing to lie, conceal and cover-up 
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1 the identities of Franciscans who pose a risk to children. 

2 In Maria's case, she contacted the Franciscans for help when she finally began to 

3 make the connection between her injuries and the abuse she suffered. Because of her young 

4 age at the time of the abuse, and the trauma she suffered during the abuse, she had been 

5 unable to recall the name of her Franciscan perpetrator. She informed the Franciscans of her 

6 age at the time of the abuse (6 years old), of her perpetrator's grooming techniques (such as 

7 buying Maria candy), of the nature of the abuse (primarily digital penetration), of the fact her 

8 perpetrator often abused her while they sat under a blanket, and of the fact he appeared to 

9 come and go quite a lot and may not have lived at the Old Mission. She also informed the 

10 Franciscans her perpetrator's name might be "Ed" or "Sam." In response, the Franciscan 

11 Vicar Provincial, Br. Tom West, infomled Maria in September 2007 and during a meeting in 

12 November 2007 that the Franciscans had been "unable to find [any possible Franciscan 

13 perpetrator) of either name." This response led Maria falsely to believe she was the only 

14 child abused by her perpetrator, thus triggering new emotional distress, shame and self-

15 loathing in Maria. As is all too common in many victims of childhood sexual abuse, she 

16 wondered what she had done wrong to make her the perpetrator's only target. Feeling 

17 horribly alone and ashamed after the meeting, Maria suffered through new injuries as a result 

18 of the Franciscans' supposed inability to identify her perpetrator: a debilitating panic attack 

19 and migraine, and repeated vomiting throughout the night after the meeting with Br. Tom. 

20 Thankfully, Maria was able to weather this attack with the support of her family. However, 

21 for many survivors such a reaction frequently leads to depression, anger, self-medication and 

22 substance abuse, and extreme acting out, all of which often result in the involvement of 

23 medical and/or law enforcement personnel. The costs of such services are then born by the 

24 general public. 

25 Unbeknownst to Maria at the time, this new trauma could have been avoided. The 

26 Franciscans and Br. Tom undoubtedly had, in fact, identified a possible Franciscan 

27 Perpetrator named Sam: Br. Sam Cabot. In 2006 both Br. Tom and the Franciscans' 

28 Provincial Minister, Fr. Jurisich, participated in mUltiple mediation sessions in Los Angeles 
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1 involving, among others, two victims ofBr. Sam. Br. Tom and Fr. Jurisich knew from their 

2 involvement in those two claims that Br. Sam had sexually abused two young girls who, like 

3 Maria, were six years old during the periods of abuse; they knew that one of Br. Sam's 

4 favorite grooming techniques, as with Maria, was to buy his victims candy; they knew that, as 

5 with Maria, Br. Sam's abuse consisted primarily of digital penetration; they knew Br. Sam 

6 used to abuse these two girls, as with Maria, as he sat with them under a blanket; and they 

7 knew that Br. Sam had continued to abuse both these young girls in Santa Barbara even 

8 while, as may have been the case with Maria, he was neither assigned nor living in Santa 

9 Barbara at the time. Despite his knowledge of these obvious parallels, Br. Tom denied any 

10 knowledge even of a possible Franciscan perpetrator named Sam. In fact, although during 

11 his November 2007 meeting with Maria Br. Tom acknowledged that these two young cousins 

12 had been abused by a Franciscan, he never disclosed to Maria the fact their perpetrator's 

13 name was "Sam." Nor did he disclose his awareness of another possible Franciscan 

14 perpetrator named "Ed," Fr. Edward Henriques, who also spent time in Santa Barbara during 

15 the period of abuse. 

16 Such Franciscan deception inevitably triggers further psychological fallout by victims 

17 who find the courage to come forward, and results in new victims such as those of Louis 

18 Ladenburger. Clearly, seeing yet another example in the Ladenburger case of the tragedy 

19 Franciscan deception and duplicity has wrought has done nothing to change Franciscan 

20 business practices when dealing with pedophilic priests and religious brothers. The 

21 Franciscans' first and only loyalty is to their corporation and its members, pedophilic or 

22 otherwise. As a result, both adult survivors of Franciscan childhood sexual abuse and today's 

23 children exposed to Franciscan perpetrators continue to be chewed up and spat out by the 

24 Franciscan corporate machine. And the number of past and present victims of this Franciscan 

25 corporate scheme continues to grow. 

26 Meanwhile, at least as recently as Spring 2007 the Franciscans allowed Br. Sam 

27 Cabot to work within half a mile of an elementaIY school in Los Angeles. A school that most 

28 likely is attended by numerous young girls the age ofBr. Sam's prior victims. A school, and 
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1 a community, that undoubtedly had no idea that a predator such as Br. Sam is within easy 

2 walking distance of their children. A predator who would be a registered sex offender had 

3 the Franciscans first reported him to law enforcement when they learned of his crimes. A 

4 predator who undoubtedly has many more victims in addition to those identified to date. 

5 

6 THE COMPELLING STATE INTEREST IN PREVENTING CHILDHOOD 
SEXUAL ABUSE 

7 

8 9. In 2004, when asked whether any Franciscan perpetrators were still in ministry, 

9 Franciscan spokesman Brother John Kiesler refused to respond to that question and argued 

10 "[t]heir privacy has a right to be respected." Brother Kiesler's response graphically illustrates 

11 the Franciscan mindset that has created an actionable Public Nuisance. The Franciscans 

12 unequivocally and defiantly continue to place the interests of Franciscan perpetrators ahead 

13 of the welfare oftoday's children. In addition to being revolting, the Franciscans' priorities 

14 are unsupportable under California law. To the extent Franciscan perpetrators retain any 

15 privacy interests, those interests are outweighed by the compelling state interest in preventing 

16 childhood sexual abuse. 

17 California courts and the state legislature have recognized, repeatedly, the compelling 

18 state interested in preventing childhood sexual abuse. Fredenburg v. Fremont, 119 

19 Cal.App.4th 408, 412-13 (2004) (discussing enactment and legislative history of Megan's 

20 Law); Burt v. County of Orange, 120 Cal.App.4th 273,285 (2004) ("concerns with protecting 

21 children from harm is a cornpelling interest supporting its efforts ill gathering information 

22 and filing reports concerning persons suspected of child abuse"); Roe v. Superior Court, 229 

23 Cal.App.3d 832, 838 (1991) (recognizing the state's compelling interest in protecting children 

24 from abuse); People v. Gonzalez, 81 Cal.App.3d 274, 277 (1978) (recognizing compelling 

25 state interest in the protection of children from sexual molestation); People v. Mills, 81 Cal. 

26 App.3d 171, 181 (1978) (person who sexually assaults a child has waived his right to 

27 privacy). However, for decades the Franciscans have successf1111y frustrated law enforcement 

28 efforts to enforce this compelling state interest, shielding Franciscan perpetrators from 
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1 criminal prosecution by concealing their crimes. Time and again the Franciscans' efforts 

2 have helped such criminals escape prosecution by concealing their crimes until the expiration 

3 of the applicable criminal statutes oflimitation. 

4 One of the ways the Franciscans have helped their perpetrators escape prosecution 

5 and registration is by instructing their members not to inform law enforcement of complaints 

6 of abuse by Franciscans. Beginning at least as early as 1993, the Franciscans' Provincial 

7 Minister met with each Franciscan community and instructed them on the procedure 

8 regarding reporting allegations of sexual abuse. Those instructions required Franciscans who 

9 suspected or received complaints of acts of childhood sexual abuse to report them only to the 

10 Guardian of the local Franciscan community. The expectation was that the Guardian would 

11 then tell the Provincial Minister. According to the Provincial's instructions, individual 

12 Franciscans were not to report to law enforcement, and the decision as to whether there 

13 would be a report to law enforcement was left entirely to the Provincial. 

14 

15 The Franciscans' Abuse of the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution to Protect 

16 Frauciscan Perpetrators from Criminal Prosecution 

17 9.1 Even worse, the Franciscans now are exploiting the religious freedoms protection 

18 provided by the First Amendment in order to avoid their obligations as mandatory reporters 

19 under Penal Code section 11166. In July of 2009 a former parishioner at a Franciscan parish 

20 reported the Franciscans' latest child-endangering ploy. That parishioner met with the 

21 Franciscan pastor at his parish in 2008 to report notorious Franciscan perpetrator Father Gus 

22 Krumm's inappropriate conduct with his (the parishioner's) wife. When the parishioner 

23 stated he wished to discuss Father Krumm, the pastor's response was immediate and 

24 premeditated: before the parishioner could say anything further about Krumm, the pastor 

25 insisted that any discussion regarding Krumm be in the context of the confessional, thus 

26 rendering the communication penitential. 

27 Under Penal Code section 11166( c)(1), clergy can avoid their obligations to notify 

28 law enforcement of reports of childhood sexual abuse if their knowledge or suspicion is 
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1 acquired in the context of a penitential communication. Thus, by insisting the parishioner 

2 make any disclosure regarding Krumm as a penitential communication, the Franciscan pastor 

3 insured he would have no reporting obligation under section 11166 in the event of a report of 

4 childhood sexual abuse. The legislature could not have intended section 11166( c) to be used 

5 as a shield by entities that protect perpetrators of childhood sexual abuse, but that is exactly 

6 what the pastor and the Franciscans have accomplished by insisting that any reports of 

7 misconduct by Franciscans be made in the context of penitential communications. In so 

8 doing the Franciscans have turned the Constitution on its head, using First Amendment 

9 protections to shield Franciscan perpetrators from law enforcement and to make the world a 

10 much more dangerous place for children. 

11 As a result of such efforts by the Franciscans efforts to protect their predatory 

12 members, very few of these men have been prosecuted, convicted, and forced to register as 

13 sex offenders. Thus, the Franciscans have successfully concealed the identities of an 

14 unknown number of Franciscan perpetrators. 

15 As evidenced by the new victims in the Ladenburger case, and the continuing pattern 

16 of deceit evidenced by the Franciscans' conduct towards Maria, the clergy-abuse crisis has 

17 not been abated by the 2006 Franciscan litigation. To the contrary, it is business as usual at 

18 Franciscan corporate headquarters. For this reason, the legal system cannot sit back and wait 

19 for current or former Franciscan perpetrators such as Ladenburger to reveal themselves 

20 through new victims. The ongoing lies, deceit, and concealment by the Franciscans mandate 

21 proactive efforts to save today's children from new abuse like that suffered by 

22 Ladenburger's recent victims. The public needs to know where Br. Cabot is currently 

23 working, particularly when he is less than half a mile away from an elementary school. They 

24 need to know about the abuse committed by Br. Matteo, and where he is currently assigned or 

25 in residence. They need to know about Fr. Bucher's history of abuse, particularly where he is 

26 allowed to conduct or have access to retreats for adolescents. And they need to know about 

27 every other current or former Franciscan who, like Ladenburger until he was caught sexually 

28 abusing more children in 2007, have been accused of childhood sexual abuse but have not yet 
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1 been identified.2 

2 It is an abomination that of the twenty-seven (27) Franciscan perpetrators who have 

3 lived in Santa Barbara since 1936, only two have been criminally prosecuted in Santa Barbara 

4 County. The sad reality is the criminal courts' hands have been tied by the Franciscans' 

5 successful efforts to conceal Franciscan criminal acts until the applicable statutes of 

6 limitation have expired. As a result, absent immediate action by the civil courts, today's 

7 children will continue to be victimized by Franciscan perpetrators throughout the Western 

8 United States at the numerous locations where the Franciscans of the Province of St. Barbara 

9 conduct their business. Pursuant to the compelling state interest in preventing acts of future 

10 childhood sexual abuse, the Franciscans must be ordered to disclose immediately the 

11 identities, histories of abuse, and last known locations of all current and former Franciscans 

12 accused of childhood sexual abuse while they were members of the order. They also must be 

13 ordered not to insist that reports of misconduct by Franciscans be made only in the context of 

14 a penitential communication. 

15 

16 DEFENDANTS' OPPORTUNITIES TO PREVENT THE ABUSE OF AND INJURY 

17 TO ERNESTO 

18 

19 Notice to the Franciscans of the Threat Posed by Johnson Before he Abused Erncsto 

20 9.2 Defendants knew or should have known of the risk posed by Johnson before he 

21 assaulted Ernesto. At least as early as the Fall of 1979 and again in the Summer of 1980, the 

22 Franciscans, including the rector, Father Mel Jurisich, received notice that Johnson was 

23 sexually assaulting St. Anthony's students. Specifically, in the Fall of 1979 Johnson sexually 

24 assaulted St. Anthony's student Craig Clover3
• It was a physically violent and terrifying 

25 

26 

27 

28 

2. In a June 19,2008, article in the Santa Barbara Independent the Franciscans admit to knowledge of 
twenty-seven (27) Franciscan perpetrators but, again, provide no information regarding their identies, 
assignment histories, or propensities. 

3. At that time Craig was known by his step-father's last name, Jenkins. 
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1 assault involving Johnson's forcible attempted rape of Craig with a foreign object. Also 

2 present during the assault was at least one other Franciscan. Thus, at least one agent of the 

3 Franciscans not only was put on notice of Johnson's propensities but observed and likely 

4 participated in one of his sexual assaults long before Johnson assaulted Ernesto. 

5 The Franciscans were put on notice of J olmson' s crimes against students again the 

6 following Summer of 1980 when Craig returned home to Phoenix once school ended. Craig 

7 reported the abuse to the pastor at Craig's home parish, Father Thomas O'Brien, a priest who 

8 would go on to become the Bishop of the Diocese of Phoenix. Craig described the assault by 

9 Brother Johnson and another by Franciscan Brother Gus Krumm. Craig also showed O'Brien 

10 photographs of Krumm and Johnson from his yearbook. O'Brien in turn asked to hold on to 

11 the yearbook until they met again, telling Craig to return 2 or 3 days later. 

12 Unfortunately Craig had placed his faith and hope in a man who ultimately would be 

13 proven to be complete ethical and moral failure both as a priest and as a human being. 

14 O'Brien would later admit - in exchange for immunity from prosecution for his actions - that 

15 beginning at least as early as 1979 and throughout his 22-year career as a bishop he 

16 repeatedly placed children at risk to be sexually abused by transferring known perpetrator 

17 priests to new parishes without any warning to the parish or the community. Further 

18 evidence of O'Brien's moral depravity came within weeks of this agreement on June 16, 

19 2003, when O'Brien was arrested and later convicted of felony hit and run after the vehicle he 

20 was driving struck and killed a six-foot tall, 235 lb. man. Despite the size of the victim and 

21 the fact the impact had caved in O'Brien's windshield, O'Brien claimed he thought someone 

22 had thrown a rock at his car, or that he had struck an animal. 

23 The grand jury investigation that led to O'Brien's admissions in exchange for 

24 immunity revealed that in 1979 O'Brien had received reports of the abuse of a ten year-old 

25 boy by another priest, and that instead of reporting the priest to law enforcement or warning 

26 parents, O'Brien transferred him to another parish where he continued to abuse children. 

27 Craig, of course, was ignorant of O'Brien's conduct, knowing only that the man was a 

28 priest and believing accordingly that he was both trustworthy and had Craig's best interests at 
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1 heart. Unfortunately, O'Brien's response to Craig was consistent with his conduct uncovered 

2 by the grand jury in 2003 of defending perpetrator priests and attacking their victims. 

3 During their second meeting O'Brien quickly showed his true colors and also revealed 

4 he had placed St. Anthony's rector on notice that Johnson had been accused of sexual abuse. 

5 He asked Craig if he knew Father Mel Jurisich, St. Anthony's rector, and then declared he 

6 had spoken to Jurisich about Craig's reports of abuse by Johnson and Krumm. After pausing, 

7 a now clearly angry O'Brien verbally attacked Craig, telling him thilt based on his 

8 (O'Brien's) discussion with Jurisich, Craig's allegations were not only untrue, they were 

9 preposterous. As Craig sat in shocked silence O'Brien continued his attack accusing Craig of 

10 slandering Johnson and Krumm, who according to O'Brien were good men and were trying 

11 to help people. O'Brien then asked Craig ifhe realized it was a mortal sin to lie to a priest. 

12 Bewildered and terrified, Craig mustered the courage to say he knew lying to a priest was a 

13 mortal sin, but that he was not lying. Thus, long before Johnson assaulted Ernesto, Father 

14 Jurisich and the Franciscans were put on notice again of the risk posed by Johnson in the 

15 Summer of 1980. 

16 Despite this notice the Franciscans assigned Johnson to work with adolescent boys 

17 and allowed him to have contact with Ernesto, doing nothing to stop the contact or to warn 

18 Ernesto's parents of the risk to Ernesto. Even worse, they allowed Johnson to take Ernesto 

19 camping with one other Franciscan perpetrator and one other student. The Franciscans could 

20 have saved Ernesto from Johnson's abuse, and undoubtedly could have saved other boys 

21 from subsequent abuse by Johnson. Instead, they told no one, protected their clearly 

22 pedophilic brethren and their own financial interests, and as a result the abuse continued. 

23 

24 The Resulting Abuse of Ernesto C. 

25 10. Plaintiff Ernesto C. grew up in Richmond, CA, and was raised in a devout Roman 

26 Catholic family. They attended Mass every Sunday and Ernesto served as an altar boy. He 

27 began attending Catholic School in sixth grade, and soon thereafter decided he wanted to 

28 become a priest. During 8th grade he applied to several seminaries, ultimately deciding on St. 
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1 Anthony's. 

2 Like so many victims of clergy abuse he also was the product of a broken home. The 

3 absence of a father figure in his life made Ernesto all the more dependent on paternal figures 

4 such as priests, and made him all the more vulnerable to predators willing to exploit this void 

5 in Ernesto's life. St. Anthony's was home to a horrific number of such predators. 

6 When Ernesto enrolled at St. Anthony's for his freshman year in 1979, it was 

7 immediately clear Franciscan perpetrator Dave Jolmson was everywhere at the school, and 

8 was permitted to have extensive and inappropriate physical contact with students. Johnson 

9 openly touched and massaged students, wrestled with them, and engaged in regular physical 

10 contact with students in public places. Such conduct between students and faculty was part 

11 of the accepted culture created and fostered by the Franciscans at St. Anthony's. 

12 During Ernesto's sophomore year in 1980-81 he was a frequent recipient of Johnson's 

13 abusive conduct. On a sometimes weekly basis that year Johnson would approach from 

14 behind and without invitation massage Ernesto's shoulders when walking down the halls. 

15 Johnson was openly and inappropriately affectionate towards Ernesto, and was observed 

16 massaging Ernesto's chest while in public on school grounds. During Spring break of this 

17 school year Johnson escalated his conduct into more extreme abuse. 

18 Johnson asked Ernesto and another student, Victim #85" to go camping at Yosemite 

19 with Johnson and another perpetrator, Br. Berard Connolly. The entire school and faculty 

20 were aware that these two men were taking the two boys on an overnight trip as, at least 

21 amongst the students, Ernesto and Victim #85 were considered lucky and cool to have been 

22 chosen. No efforts were made by the Franciscans to stop the trip from happening, and the 

23 four left from the school without objection by the Franciscans. 

24 The two men and the two boys drove to Yosemite in a school van. Ernesto 

25 remembers thinking it was a bit strange he and Victim #85 had been invited as they were not 

26 

27 

28 
4. Victim #85 unfortunately was a favorite target of the perpetrator priests and religious brothers at St. 
Anthony's. At least one other perpetrator, Father Gus Krumm, has admitted Victim #85 was one of many 
students he abused while assigned to St. Anthony's. 
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1 friends. The fact they had been targeted for abuse never crossed Ernesto's mind. At the 

2 campground there werc two tents, with Victim #85 and Connolly in one, and Johnson and 

3 Ernesto in the other. 

4 Over the next two days Johnson sexually assaulted Ernesto on at least two occasions, 

5 including an assault while hiking and another the first night in the tent they shared. Before 

6 the assault in the tent the four had been sitting around the campfire. COIIDolly and Victim 

7 #85 eventually went to their own tent and Ernesto found himself alone with Johnson. After 

8 they left Johnson smiled and said "I've got a surprise for you, " pulling out a bottle of 

9 Bacardi. Ernesto was euphoric, believing Johnson meant this as a celebration for their having 

10 completed a long hike together earlier that day. Emesto looked up to Johnson as a spiritual 

11 counselor, an authority figure, and, most important, as someone who spoke with the voice of 

12 God. Johnson in many ways filled the paternal void created when Ernesto's father 

13 abandoned their family. The fact Johnson now wanted to provide him with alcohol to 

14 celebrate something they accomplished together made Emesto feel special, and provided 

15 Ernesto with feelings of paternal validation he had long craved. 

16 Johnson handed the bottle to the boy and induced him to drink about half the bottle. 

17 Once Ernesto was very inebriated, Johnson walked the boy to the tent where Ernesto fell 

18 face-first onto his sleeping bag, drunk, groggy and wanting nothing more than to go to sleep. 

19 Johnson had other plans. Knowing he had rendered the boy into a vulnerable state Johnson 

20 exploited the situation and sexually assaulted Ernesto. Ernesto recalls struggling against the 

21 assault, hearing the noise of the struggle from the rustling of the sleeping bags, but being too 

22 groggy and intoxicated to stop the abuse by the much bigger and stronger man. 

23 10.1 The sexual abuse and exploitation of Plaintiff and the circumstances under which it 

24 occurred caused Plaintiff to develop various psychological coping mechanisms which 

25 reasonably made him incapable of ascertaining the resulting damages from that conduct. 

26 Within the last 3 years, Plaintiff discovered or reasonably should have discovered that 

27 psychological injury or illness occurring after the age of majority was caused by the sexual 

28 abuse. 
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1 Johnson, acting as a managing agent of the Defendants, utilized the trust and 

2 reverence inherent in his status as a Franciscan to isolate and abuse Ernesto. Ernesto was 

3 raised in a devout Roman Catholic family that idolized priests, was taught by Defendants to 

4 trust, revere and obey priests as God's representatives on earth, and had enrolled at St. 

5 Anthony's with the dream of himself becoming a priest. Ernesto also was the product ofa 

6 broken home and was desperate for paternal validation. Jolmson exploited these things to 

7 manipulate Ernesto, who was approximately fifteen (15) years of age. 

8 When Johnson showered Ernesto with praise and affection while grooming him for 

9 abuse, Ernesto was euphoric at receiving such long-craved paternal attention from a man he 

10 considered the voice of God and thus infallible. When J olmson' s grooming became sexual 

11 abuse Ernesto's subconscious was unwilling and unable to recognize the wrongfulness of 

12 Johnson's conduct as doing so would have destroyed his long-held faith in the infallibility of 

13 Roman Catholic priests. It also would have ripped away the newfonnd paternal validation 

14 that he craved and that Johnson had mercilessly recognized and exploited during the 

15 grooming process. As a result, when the abuse began Ernesto was overwhelmed with shock 

16 and confusion. Unable to acknowledge that this man he had been groomed to trust, admire 

17 and depend on was sexually assaulting him, Ernesto shut-down and disconnected, 

18 dissociating himself from the horror of what was taking place and repressing all memory of 

19 the abuse. 

20 It was not until many years later that Ernesto began to recover memories of Johnson's 

21 abuse. To this day there remain parts of Johnson's assault in the tent that he has been unable 

22 to recall, and he still has no memory of waking up the next morning. In an illustration of 

23 both his desperation for a trusted father figure and the strength of his repression he recalls 

24 having a special feeling towards Johnson the morning after the assault, as if they were family 

25 and shared a strong familial connection. He recalls thinking it was nice to have such a 

26 wonderful connection with a father-figure who Ernesto also considered a brother in the Lord. 

27 Ernesto has been able to recall little of the remainder of the trip. He knows they spent a 

28 second night at the camp, but has been unable to recall what occurred. 
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1 Further illustration of the extent of the repression of the memory of the abuse is the 

2 fact until relatively recently Emesto considered Johnson a special person in his life. Emesto 

3 asked Jolll1son to officiate at his wedding in 1985, wrote Johnson for guidance, felt 

4 compelled to share with Johnson in approximately 1998 the fact he (Emesto) had a profound 

5 religious experience at a Cursillos, and as recently as 2000 or 200 I felt compelled to tell 

6 Johnson he loved him (Johnson) as a brother in the Lord. When contacted by an investigator 

7 in the late 1990s and asked whether he had been abused at St. Anthony's, Emesto was 

8 adamant in stating he had not. It was not until Emesto began to recover these memories that 

9 he realized Jolll1son, his perceived savior, had crossed the line into sexual abuse. 

10 As a result of his reverence for Johnson and his repression of memories of the abuse 

11 Emesto could not understand the wrongfulness of Johnson's conduct, and intemalized 

12 feelings of shame, self-blame, and self-loathing, while blocking out and dissociating from 

13 those feelings, rendering him unable to perceive the injuries he suffered from Johnson's 

14 abusive conduct and its effect on his life 

15 After the abuse Emesto's life began a downward spiral. Without understanding his 

16 own behavior, Emesto rebelled against authority figures and abused alcohol and drugs. The 

17 alcohol abuse went on for decades, and remains a continuing challenge for Emesto. 

18 In the summer of 2006, Emesto' s abuse-related self-medication with alcohol had 

19 grown so out of control that he began treatment for alcoholism that required substantial self-

20 analysis and introspection. It was during this process that Emesto first realized Johnson's 

21 abuse had caused him injury. He also began for the first time to understand his own feelings 

22 surrounding the abuse, how the abuse has affected him, and how it continues to affect him. 

23 Prior to the summer of 2006, Emesto did not know or understand his own feelings regarding 

24 the abuse, much less that it had caused him injuries as an adult. 

25 11. As a direct result of the wrongful conduct alleged herein, Plaintiff has suffered, and 

26 continues to suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical 

27 manifestations of emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, 

28 humiliation, and loss of enjoyment of lifc; has suffered and continue to suffer spiritually; was 
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1 prevented and will continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiffs daily activities and 

2 obtaining tbe full enjoyment of life; has sustained and continue to sustain loss of earnings and 

3 earning capacity; and/or has incUlTed and will continue to incur expenses for medical and 

4 psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 12. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

PUBLIC NUISANCE 

(Against The Defendants) 

Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

10 forth herein. 

11 13. Defendants continue to conspire and engage in efforts to: 1) conceal from the general 

12 public the sexual assaults committed by, the identities of, and tbe pedophilic/ephebophilic 

13 tendencies of, the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic agents; 2) attack the 

14 credibility of the victims of the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic/ephebophilic 

15 agents; 3) protect the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic/ephebophilic current and 

16 former agents from criminal prosecution and registration as sex offenders for their sexual 

17 assaults against children; and 4) exploit and abuse the protection for religious freedom 

18 provided by the 1 st Amendment to the U.S. Constitution for the purpose of escaping their 

19 obligation to report childhood sexual abuse under California Penal Code section 11166, all in 

20 violation of law. 

21 14. The negligence and/or deception and concealment by Defendants was and is injurious 

22 to the health of, indecent or offensive to the senses of, and an obstruction to the free use of 

23 property by, the general public, including but not limited to residents of the County of Santa 

24 Barbara and all other members of the general public who live in communities where 

25 Defendants conducted, and continue to conduct, their work and/or ministry, and was and is 

26 indecent and offensive to the senses, so as to interfere with the general public's comfortable 

27 enjoyment of life in that children cannot be left unsupervised in any location where there are 

28 agents of Defendants present as the general public cannot trust Defendants to prohibit their 
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1 pedophilic agents from supervising, caring for, or having any contact with children, nor to 

2 warn parents of the presence of the pedophilic agents of Defendants, nor to identify their 

3 pedophilic. agents, nor to identify and/or report to law enforcement their agents accused of 

4 childhood sexual abuse, thus creating an impairment ofthe safety of children in the 

5 neighborhoods where Defendants conducted, and continue to conduct, their work and/or 

6 ministries. 

7 Defendants' conduct has caused further injury to the public and severely impaired the 

8 safety of children where Defendants have protected and concealed the Perpetrator and 

9 Defendants' other pedophilic/ephebophilic agents from criminal prosecution and registration 

10 as sex offenders for their sexual assaults, where the Perpetrator and/or Defendants' other 

11 pedophilic/ephebophilic agents subsequently have left Defendants' employ, and where 

12 Defendants have disavowed any responsibility for the Perpetrator and/or Defendants' other 

13 pedophilic/ephebophilic former agents despite the fact Defendants facilitated these former 

14 agents' avoiding criminal prosecution and having to register as sex offenders. As a result of 

15 Defendants' conduct, when Defendants' former agents have sought employment placing them 

16 in positions of trust with children, Defendants are the only ones aware ofthe risk posed by 

17 these former agents, and potential employers, childcare custodians, and parents have no 

18 means ofidentif)ring the risk to their children posed by such men. Today's children continue 

19 to be put at risk and abused under these circumstances by Defendants' former agents, at least 

20 as recently as 2007. 

21 15. The negligence and/or deception and concealment by Defendants was specially 

22 injurious to Plaintiff's health as he and his family were unaware of the danger posed to 

23 children left unsupervised with agents of Defendants, and as a result of this deception, 

24 Plaintiff was placed in the custody and control of the Perpetrator, an agent of Defendants, 

25 who subsequently sexually assaulted Plaintiff. 

26 16. The continuing public nuisance created by Defendants was, and continues to be, the 

27 proximate cause of the injuries and damages to the general public alleged in paragraph 14, 

28 and of Plaintiff's special injuries and damages as alleged in paragraph 15. 
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1 17. In doing the aforementioned acts, Defendants acted negligently and/or intentionally, 

2 maliciously and with conscious disregard for Plaintiffs rights. 

3 18. As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to 

4 suffer special injury in that they suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional 

5 distress, physical manifestations of emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, 

6 disgrace, humiliation, and loss of enjoyment oflife; has suffered and continues to suffer 

7 spiritually; was prevented and will continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiffs daily 

8 activities and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain 

9 loss of earnings and eaming capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses 

10 for medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of 

11 these injuries, Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of 

12 the jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

13 As a further result ofthe above-described conduct by Defendants Plaintiff further 

14 requests injunctive relief prohibiting Defendants from, among other things: allowing their 

15 pedophilic/ephebophilic agents to have any unsnpervised contact with children; transferring 

16 their pedophilic/ephebophilic agents to communities whose citizens are unaware of the risk to 

17 children posed by said agents; failing/refusing to disclose to and/or concealing from the 

18 general public and/or law enforcement when Defendants have transferred a 

19 pedophilic/ephebophilic agent into their midst; failing/refusing to disclose to and/or 

20 concealing from law enforcement and/or the general public the identities and the criminal 

21 acts of their pedophilic/ephebophilic agents; failing/refusing to disclose to and/or concealing 

22 from the public and/or law enforcement reports, complaints, accusations or allegations of acts 

23 of childhood sexual abuse committed by Defendants' current or fon11er agents; and insisting 

24 that reports, complaints, accusations or allegations of acts by Defendants' agents be made 

25 only in the context of a penitential communication. Defendants should be ordered to stop 

26 failing/refusing to disclose to and/or concealing and instead should identify each and every 

27 one of their current and former agents who have been accused of childhood sexual abuse, the 

28 dates of the accusation(s), the date(s) of the alleged abuse, the location(s) of the alleged 
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1 abuse, and the accused agents' assignment histories. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

NEGLIGENCE 

(Against All Defendants) 

6 19. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

forth herein. 

20. Sometime in approximately 1981 the Perpetrator repeatedly engaged in unpermitted, 

hannful and offensive sexual conduct and contact with Plaintiff. Said conduct was 

undertaken while the Perpetrator was an employee, volunteer, representative, or agent of 

Defendants, while in the course and scope of employment with Defendants, and/or was 

ratified by Defendants. 

21. Prior to or during the abuse alleged above, Defendants knew, had reason to know, or 

were otherwise on notice of unlawful sexual conduct by the Perpetrator and Defendants' 

other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. Defendants failed to take reasonable steps and 

failed to implement reasonable safeguards to avoid acts of unlawful sexual conduct in the 

future by the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, 

including, but not limited to, preventing or avoiding placement ofthe Perpetrator and 

Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents in functions or environments in 

which contact with children was an inherent part of those functions or environments. 

Furthennore, at no time during the periods oftime alleged did Defendants have in place a 

system or procedure to supelvise and/or monitor employees, volunteers, representatives, or 

agents to insure that they did not molest or abuse minors in Defendants' care, including the 

Plaintiff. 

25 22. Defendants had a duty to protect the minor Plaintiff when he was entrusted to their 

26 care by Plaintiffs parents. Plaintiffs care, welfare, and/or physical custody was temporarily 

27 entrusted to Defendants. Defendants voluntarily accepted the entrusted care of Plaintiff. As 

28 such, Defendants owed Plaintiff, a minor child, a special duty of care, in addition to a duty of 
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1 ordinary care, and owed Plaintiff the higher duty of care that adults dealing with children owe 

2 to protect them from harm. 

3 23. Defendants, by and through their agents, servants and employees, knew or reasonably 

4 should have known of the Perpetrator's and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

5 ephebophilic agents' dangerous and exploitive propensities and that they were unfit agents. It 

6 was foreseeable that if Defendants did not adequately exercise or provide the duty of care 

7 owed to children in their care, including but not limited to Plaintiff, the child entrusted to 

8 Defendants' care would be vulnerable to sexual abuse by the Perpetrator and Defendants' 

9 other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

10 24. Defendants breached their duty of care to the minor Plaintiff by allowing the 

11 Perpetrator to come into contact with the minor Plaintiff without supervision; by failing to 

12 adequately hire, supervise, or retain the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

13 ephebophilic agents who they permitted and enabled to have access to Plaintiff; by failing to 

14 investigate or otherwise confirm or deny such facts about the Perpetrator and Defendants' 

15 other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents; by failing to tell or concealing from Plaintiff, 

16 Plaintiffs parents, guardians, or law enforcement officials that the Perpetrator and 

17 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents were or may have been sexually 

18 abusing minors; by failing to tell or concealing from Plaintiffs parents, guardians, or law 

19 enforcement officials that Plaintiff was or may have been sexually abused after Defendants 

20 knew or had reason to know that the Perpetrator may have sexually abused Plaintiff, thereby 

21 enabling Plaintiff to continue to be endangered and sexually abused, and/or creating the 

22 circumstance where Plaintiff was less likely to receive medical/mental health care and 

23 treatment, thus exacerbating the hann done to Plaintiff; and/or by holding out the Perpetrator 

24 to the Plaintiff and his parents or guardians as being in good standing and trustworthy. 

25 Defendants cloaked within the facade of normalcy Defendants' and/or the Perpetrator's and 

26 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents' contact and/or actions with the 

27 Plaintiff and/or with other minors who were victims of the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

28 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, and/or disguised the nature of the sexual abuse and 
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1 contact. 

2 25. As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to 

3 suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of 

4 emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of 

5 enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; was prevented and will 

6 continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiff's daily activities and obtaining the full 

7 enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of earnings and earning 

8 capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and 

9 psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

NEGLIGENT SUPERVISION/FAILURE TO WARN 

(Against All Defendants) 

26. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

16 27. Defendants had a duty to provide reasonable supervision of the Perpetrator and 

17 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, and to use reasonable care in 

18 investigating the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

19 Additionally, because Defendants knew or should have known of the heightened risk the 

20 Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents posed to all 

21 children, Defendants had a heightened duty to provide reasonable supervision and protection 

22 to children with whom Defendants allowed the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic 

23 and/or ephebophilic agents to have contact and/or custody and control of; and to provide 

24 adequate warning to the Plaintiff, the Plaintiff's family, minor students, and minor 

25 parishioners of the Perpetrator's and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic 

26 agents' dangerous propensities and unfitness. 

27 28. Defendants, by and through their agents, servants and employees, knew or reasonably 

28 should have known of the Perpetrator's and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 
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1 ephebophilic agents' dangerous and exploitive propensities and that they were unfit agents. 

2 Defendants also knew that if they failed to provide children who had contact with the 

3 Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents sufficient 

4 supervision and protection, those children would be vulnerable to sexual assaults by the 

5 Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic andlor ephebophilic agents. Despite such 

6 knowledge, Defendants negligently failed to supervise the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

7 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents in the position of trust and authority as a Roman 

8 Catholic Priest, religious brother, religious instructor, counselor, school administrator, school 

9 teacher, surrogate parent, spiritual mentor, emotional mentor, and/or other authority figure, 

10 where he was able to commit the wrongful acts against the Plaintiff. Defendants failed to 

11 provide reasonable supervision of the Perpetrators and Defendants' other pedophilic andlor 

12 ephebophilic agents, failed to use reasonable care in investigating the Perpetrator and 

13 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, and failed to provide adequate 

14 waming to Plaintiff and Plaintiffs family of the Perpetrator's and Defendants' other 

15 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents' dangerous propensities and unfitness. Defendants 

16 further failed to provide Plaintiff with adequate supervision and protection, and failed to take 

17 reasonable measures to prevent future sexual abuse. 

18 29. As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to 

19 suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of 

20 emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of 

21 enjoyment oflife; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; was prevented and will 

22 continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiffs daily activities and obtaining the full 

23 enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of eamings and eaming 

24 capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and 

25 psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these injuries, 

26 Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of the 

27 jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

28 

- 29 -

FIRST AMENDED COMPlAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE REliEF 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

NEGLIGENT HIRINGIRETENTION 

(Against All Defendants) 

30. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

6 31. Defendants had a duty not to hire and/or retain the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

7 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents given their dangerous and exploitive propensities. 

8 32. Defendants, by and through their agents, servants and employees, knew or reasonably 

9 should have known of the Perpetrator's and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

10 ephebophilic agents' dangerous and exploitive propensities and/or that they were unfit agents. 

11 Despite such knowledge, Defendants negligently hired and/or retained the Perpetrator and 

12 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents in the position of trust and authority 

13 as a Roman Catholic Priest, religious brother, religious instructor, counselor, school 

14 administrator, school teacher, surrogate parent, spiritual mentor, emotional mentor, and/or 

15 other authority figure, where he was able to commit the wrongful acts against the Plaintiff. 

16 Defendants failed to use reasonable care in investigating the Perpetrator andlor Defendants' 

17 other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents and failed to provide adequate warning to 

18 Plaintiff and Plaintiff's family of the Perpetrator's and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

19 ephebophilic agents' dangerous propensities and unfitness. Defendants further failed to take 

20 reasonable measures to prevent future sexual abuse. 

21 33. As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to 

22 suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of 

23 emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of 

24 enjoyment oflife; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; was prevented and will 

25 continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiff's daily activities and obtaining the full 

26 enjoyment of life; has snstained and will continue to sustain loss of earnings and earning 

27 capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and 

28 psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these injuries, 
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1 Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of the 

2 jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

FRAUD 

(Against All Defendants) 

34. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as iffully set 

forth herein. 

35. Defendants knew and/or hadreason to know of the sexual misconduct of the 

Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic andlor ephebophilic agents. 

36. Defendants misrepresented, concealed or failed to disclose information relating to 

sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic 

agents as described herein, and Defendants continue to misrepresent, conceal, and fail to 

disclose information relating to sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents as described herein. 

37. Defendants knew that they misrepresented, concealed or failed to disclose 

information relating to sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

38. Plaintiff justifiably relied upon Defendants for information relating to sexual 

misconduct ofthe Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

39. Defendants, with the intent to conceal and defraud, did misrepresent, conceal or fail to 

disclose information relating to the sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and Defendants' 

other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

40. As a direct result of Defendants' fraud, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to suffer 

great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of emotional 

distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of enjoyment of 

life; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; was prevented and will continue to be 

prevented from perfoffi1ing Plaintiffs daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment oflife; 
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1 has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of eamings and eaming capacity; and/or has 

2 incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and psychological treatment, 

3 therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these injuries, Plaintiff has suffered general 

4 and special damages in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

5 41. In addition, when Plaintiff discovered the fraud of Defendants, and continuing 

6 thereafter, Plaintiff experienced recurrences of the above-described injuries. In addition, 

7 when Plaintiff finally discovered the fraud of Defendants, and continuing thereafter, Plaintiff 

8 experienced extreme and severe mental and emotional distress that Plaintiff had been the 

9 victim of the Defendants' fraud; that Plaintiff had not been able to help other minors being 

10 molested because of the fraud; and that Plaintiff had not been able because of the fraud to 

11 receive timely medical treatment needed to deal with the problems Plaintiff had suffered and 

12 continues to suffer as a result of the molestations. 

13 

14 SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

15 FIDUCIARY/CONFIDENTIAL RELATIONSHIP FRAUD 

16 AND CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT FRAUD 

17 (Against All Defendants) 

18 42. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

forth herein. 

43. Because of Plaintiffs young age, and because of the status of the Perpetrator as an 

authority figure to Plaintiff, Plaintiff was vulnerable to the Perpetrator. The Perpetrator 

sought Plaintiff out, and was empowered by and accepted Plaintiffs vulnerability. Plaintiffs 

vulnerability also prevented Plaintifffrom effectively protecting himself. 

44. By holding the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic 

agents out as a qualified Roman Catholic clergy, religious brother, religious instructor, 

counselor, school administrator, school teacher, surrogate parent, spiritual mentor, emotional 

mentor, and/or other authority figure, and by undertaking the religious and/or secular 

instruction and spiritual and emotional counseling of Plaintiff, Defendants held special 
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1 positions of trust and entered into a fiduciary and/or confidential relationship with the minor 

2 Plaintiff. 

3 45. Having a fiduciary and/or confidential relationship, Defendants had the duty to obtain 

4 and disclose information relating to sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and Defendants' 

5 other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

6 46. Defendants misrepresented, concealed or failed to disclose information relating to 

7 sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic 

8 agents, and Defendants continued to misrepresent, conceal, and/or fail to disclose information 

9 relating to sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

10 ephebophilic agents as described herein. 

11 47. Defendants knew that they misrepresented, concealed or failed to disclose 

12 information relating to sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

13 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

14 48. Plaintiff justifiably relied upon Defendants for infornlation relating to sexual 

15 misconduct of the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

16 49. Defendants, in concert with each other and with the intent to conceal and defraud, 

17 conspired and came to a meeting of the minds whereby they would misrepresent, conceal or 

18 fail to disclose infornlation relating to the sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and/or 

19 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

20 50. By so concealing, Defendants committed at least one act in furtherance of the 

21 conspiracy. 

22 51. As a direct result of Defendants' fraud and conspiracy, Plaintiff has suffered, and 

23 continues to suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical 

24 manifestations of emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, 

25 humiliation, and loss of enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; 

26 was prevented and will continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiffs daily activities 

27 and obtaining the full enjoyment oflife; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of 

28 earnings and earning capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for 
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1 medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these 

2 injuries, Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of the 

3 jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

4 52. In addition, when Plaintiff discovered the fraud of Defendants, and continuing 

5 thereafter, Plaintiff experienced recurrences of the above-described injuries. In addition, 

6 when Plaintiff finally discovered the fraud of Defendants, and continuing thereafter, Plaintiff 

7 experienced extreme and severe mental and emotional distress that Plaintiff had been the 

8 victim of the Defendants' fraud; that Plaintiff had not been able to help other minors being 

9 molested because of the fraud; and that Plaintiff had not been able because of the fraud to 

10 receive timely medical treatment needed to deal with the problems Plaintiff had suffered and 

11 continues to suffer as a result of the molestations. 

12 

13 SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

14 BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY AND/OR CONFIDENTIAL RELATIONSHIP 

15 (Against All Dcfcndants) 

16 53. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

17 forth herein. 

18 54. Because of Plaintiff s young age, and because of the status of the Perpetrator as an 

19 authority figure to Plaintiff, Plaintiff was vulnerable to the Perpetrator. The Perpetrator 

20 sought Plaintiff out, and was empowered by and accepted Plaintiffs vulnerability. Plaintiffs 

21 vulnerability also prevented Plaintiff from effectively protecting himself. 

22 55. By holding the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic 

23 agents out as a qualified Roman Catholic clergy, religious, religious instlUctor, counselor, 

24 school administrator, school teacher, surrogate parent, spiritual mentor, emotional mentor, 

25 and/or any other authority figure, by allowing the Perpetrator to have custody and control of 

26 and/or contact with the Plaintiff, and by undertaking the religious and/or secular instlUction 

27 and spiritual and/or emotional counseling of Plaintiff, Defendants entered into a fiduciary 

28 and/or confidential relationship with the minor Plaintiff. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

56. Defendants and each of them breached their fiduciary duty to Plaintiff by engaging in 

the negligent and wrongful conduct described herein. 

57. As a direct result of Defendants' breach of their fiduciary duty, Plaintiff has suffered, 

and continues to suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical 

manifestations of emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, 

humiliation, and loss of enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; 

was prevented and will continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiffs daily activities 

and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of 

earnings and earning capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for 

medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these 

injuries, Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of the 

jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

14 EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

15 NEGLIGENT FAILURE TO WARN, TRAIN, OR EDUCATE PLAINTIFF 

16 (Against All Defendants) 

17 58. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

forth herein. 

59. Defendants breached their duty to take reasonable protective measures to protect 

Plaintiff and other minor parishioners and/or students from the risk of childhood sexual abuse 

by the Perpetrator and/or Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, such as 

the failure to properly warn, train, or educate Plaintiff, his parents, Defendants' agents, 

employees and volunteers, and other minor parishioners and/or students about how to avoid 

such a risk and/or defend himself or herself if necessary, pursuant to Juarez v. Boy Scouts of 

America, Inc., 81 Cal.AppAth 377 (2000). 

Defendants knew, or in the exercise of reasonable diligence should have known, of 

the general risk of sexual assaults against children and, specifically, of the Perpetrator's and 

Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents' propensities to commit, and history 
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1 of committing, sexual abuse of children, and that an undue risk to children in their custody 

2 and care, such as Plaintiff, would exist because of this propensity to commit sexual assaults, 

3 and the history of sexual assaults against children, unless Defendants adequately taught, 

4 educated, secured, oversaw, and maintained students, including Plaintiff, as well as other 

5 children in the custody and control of, or in contact with, Catholic clergy and Defendants' 

6 other pedophilic and ephebophilic agents. Defendants were put on actual and/or constructive 

7 notice, at least as early as 1979, that the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

8 ephebophilic agents were sexually assaulting children at countless locations, including Santa 

9 Barbara County. From that date forward, Defendants repeatedly and negligently ignored 

10 complaints from victims and/or their parents, as well as warnings from Catholic clergy, that 

11 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic Catholic clergy were assaulting children in, among other 

12 locations, Santa Barbara County. 

13 Defendants also knew or should have known that the general risk of sexual assaults 

14 against children and, specifically, the risk posed by the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

15 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents' propensities to commit, and history of committing, 

16 sexual abuse of children, could be eliminated, or at least minimized, if they took steps to 

17 educate, warn and train children in Defendants' custody and control, as well as those 

18 children's parents, and Defendants' employces, agents and volunteers, regarding the danger 

19 posed by pedophilic and ephebophilic clergy, how to recognize and avoid this danger, and 

20 how a child should defend herself or himself when assaulted by pedophilic and/or 

21 ephebophilic clergy. Based on their knowledge of the risk posed by the Perpetrator and 

22 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, and the history of sexual assaults 

23 around Santa Barbara since at least 1936, Defendants had a duty to take the aforementioned 

24 steps. 

25 Notwithstanding the knowledge of the general risk of sexual assaults against children 

26 and, specifically, that the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic 

27 agents had such propensities to commit, and had committed, sexual abuse of children, and 

28 notwithstanding that Defendants knew it was not only reasonably foreseeable but likely that 

- 36 -

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND IN.JUNGTIVF RFUFF 



1 the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents would sexually 

2 assault children, Defendants breached their duty to adequately teach, educate, secure, oversee, 

3 and maintain students, including Plaintiff, as well as all other children in the custody and 

4 control of, or in contact with, Catholic clergy, and breached their duty to educate, warn and 

5 train children in Defendants' custody and control, as well as those children's parents and 

6 Defendants' employees, agents and volunteers, regarding the danger to children posed by 

7 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic clergy, how to recognize and avoid this danger, and how a 

8 child should defend himself or herself when assaulted by pedophilic and/or ephebophilic 

9 clergy. 

10 Defendants knew or should have known that their failure to exercise reasonable care, 

11 as discussed above, would cause Plaintiff severe emotional distress and physical injury. 

12 Because of the foreseeability and likelihood of sexual assaults by the Perpetrator and 

13 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents against Plaintiff and other children, 

14 Defendants breached their duty of care to Plaintiff and other children in their custody and 

15 control. 

16 The failure of Defendants to educate, warn and train children in Defendants' custody 

17 and control, as well as those children's parents and Defendants' employees, agents and 

18 volunteers, regarding the danger to children posed by pedophilic and/or ephebophilic clergy, 

19 how to recognize and avoid this danger, and how a child should defend himself or herself 

20 when assaulted by pedophilic and ephebophilic clergy, was the proximate cause of Plaintiffs 

21 injuries as alleged herein. 

22 60. As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to 

23 suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of 

24 emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of 

25 enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; was prevented and will 

26 continue to be prevented from perfom1ing Plaintiffs daily activities and obtaining the full 

27 enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of eamings and eaming 

28 capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and 
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1 psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these injuries, 

2 Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of the 

3 jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

(Against all Defendants) 

8 61. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

9 forth herein. 

10 62. Defendants' conduct was extreme and outrageous and was intentional or done 

11 recklessly. Defendants knew or should have known the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

12 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents were spending time in the company of and assaulting 

13 numerous children, including Plaintiff, around Santa Barbara and other locations, including 

14 on school grounds, in the parishes, and in the Perpetrator's rectory rooms. Defendants also 

15 knew or should have known the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

16 ephebophilic agents were high risks to all children as Defendants had received numerous 

17 complaints and other notice of prior acts of childhood sexual abuse by the Perpetrator and 

18 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, and had sent the Perpetrator and/or 

19 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents for treatment for their pedophilia, 

20 prior to and/or after assigning them to work in Santa Barbara. Given their knowledge of 

21 numerous prior acts of abuse by the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

22 ephebophilic agents, Defendants knew or should have known that every child exposed to the 

23 Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, including Plaintiff, 

24 was substantially certain to be assaulted by the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic 

25 and/or ephebophilic agents. Defendants knew or should have known, and had the 

26 opportunity to learn of, the intentional and malicious conduct of the Perpetrator and 

27 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, and thereby ratified and joined in 

28 said conduct by failing to terminate, discharge, or at least discipline the Perpetrator and 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, and/or by failing to prevent them 

from having contact with children. The conduct of Defendants in confirming, concealing and 

ratifYing that conduct was done with knowledge that Plaintifrs emotional and physical 

distress would thereby increase, and was done with a wanton and reckless disregard of the 

consequences to Plaintiff and other children in their custody and control. 

63. As a result of Defendants' conduct, Plaintiff experienced and continues to 

experience severe emotional distress resulting in bodily harm. 

64. As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to 

suffer grcat pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of 

emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of 

enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; was prevented and will 

continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiff s daily activities and obtaining the full 

enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of earnings and earning 

capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and 

psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these injuries, 

Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of the 

jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

(Against All Defendants) 

65. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

24 66. Defendants knew or should have known that their failure to exercise reasonable care 

25 in the selection, approval, employment and supervision of the Perpetrator and Defendants' 

26 other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents would cause Plaintiff severe emotional distress. 

27 Because of the foreseeability of sexual assaults by the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

28 pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents against Plaintiff and other children, Defendants 
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1 enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of earnings and earning 

2 capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and 

3 psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these injuries, 

4 Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of the 

5 jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

6 In addition, when Plaintiff finally discovered the negligent misrepresentations of 

7 Defendants, and continuing thereafter, Plaintiff experienced extreme and severe mental and 

8 emotional distress that Plaintiff had been the victim of the Defendants' negligent 

9 misrepresentations; that Plaintiff had not been able to help other minors being molested 

10 because of the negligent misrepresentations; and that Plaintiff had not been able because of 

11 the negligent misrepresentations and failure to disclose to receive timely medical treatment 

12 needed to deal with the problems Plaintiff had suffered and continues to suffer as a result of 

13 the molestations. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

UNFAIR COMPETITION -

VIOLATION OF BUSINESS & PROFESSIONS CODE § 17200 

(Against all Defendants) 

71. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

21 72. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants conspired and engaged in unlawful, unfair 

22 or fraudulent business aets, within the meaning of Business & Professions Code § 17200. 

23 73. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants were and are engaged in nonprofit business 

24 activities, including but not limited to: providing public service which the Catholic Church 

25 refers to as its "ministry"; operating hospitals, schools, universities, orphanages, or other 

26 institutions; providing religious, psychological, emotional and social counseling; conducting 

27 various charitable activities and providing services whether or not within the scope of 26 

28 U.S.C. § 501(c)(3); and soliciting charitable donations. 
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1 breached their duty of care in engaging in the conduct referred to in the preceding paragraphs. 

2 67. Defendants knew or should have known that their failure to exercise reasonable care 

3 in providing adequate supervision to Plaintiff and other children in their custody and control, 

4 despite the fact they knew or should have known of the threat to children posed by the 

5 Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, would cause 

6 Plaintiff severe emotional distress. Defendants also knew or should have known that their 

7 failure to disclose infonnation relating to sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and 

8 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents as described herein would cause 

9 Plaintiff severe emotional distress and subject him to further assaults. Because of the 

10 foreseeability of sexual assaults by the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

11 ephebophilic agents against Plaintiff and other children, Defendants breached their duty to 

12 exercise reasonable care in failing to provide adequate supervision to Plaintiff and other 

13 children in their custody and control, and in failing to disclose information to Plaintiff, his 

14 family, and the general public relating to sexual misconduct of the Perpetrator and 

15 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

16 68. Finally, Defendants knew or should have known that their creation and continuance of 

17 the Public Nuisance set forth in the preceding paragraphs would cause Plaintiff severe 

18 emotional distress. Because of the foreseeability of sexual assanlts by the Perpetrator and 

19 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents against Plaintiff and other children 

20 as a result of this conduct, Defendants breached their duty of care in creating and continuing 

21 the Public Nuisance referred to in the preceding paragraphs. 

22 69. Plaintiff experienced and continues to experience severe emotional distress reSUlting 

23 in bodily harm. 

24 70. As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to 

25 suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of 

26 emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of 

27 enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; was prevented and will 

28 continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiffs daily activities and obtaining the full 
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1 74. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants have as a significant source of revenue the 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

receipt of charitable donations from persons who worship or associate themselves with the 

Catholic Church. 

75. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants conducted and continue through the 

present to conduct their respective business affairs as set forth in Paragraphs 72 through 74 in 

such a manner as to willfully and negligently: foster an environment conducive to predatory 

pedophilic and ephebophilic behavior; conceal from the general public the sexual assaults 

committed by, the identities of, and the pedophilic and ephebophilic tendencies of, Catholic 

clergy; protect the pedophilic and ephebophilic clergy from civil and criminal prosecution; 

respond to allegations of sexual misconduct against the Catholic clergy with blanket dcnials 

and/or the creation of entities controlled by the Church hierarchy that are misrepresentcd as 

taking appropriate action but instead perpetuate the concealment of sexual misconduct; 

represent to the Catholic laity and the general public that appropriate action is being taken by 

the Church concerning allegations of sexual misconduct and child molestation when in fact it 

is engaging in concealment and suppression of the truth; place predatory clergy into 

communities with children without any warning to those communities; and attempting to 

shield themselves from their reporting obligations of suspected childhood sexual abuse under 

Penal Code section 11166 by insisting that anyone making a report of misconduct by a 

Franciscan do so in the context of penitential communications to the Franciscan receiving the 

report. 

Further, on infonnation and belief, Defendants represent to the Catholic laity, the 

general public and survivors of clergy abuse that they have created entities, such as the 

Independent Response Team and/or the Office of Pastoral Outreach and/or the Province 

Review Board, which purport to "offer help ... for those affected by Friar misconduct." 

Defendants further represent to the public that these entities will handle each "claim with the 

strictest sensitivity and confidentiality." In reality, and notwithstanding any good intentions 

of the lay people who work within these entities, the information obtained by such entities 

ultimately is harvested by the Franciscans and provided to their attorneys for use against 
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1 survivors of Franciscan sexual abuse who attempt to makc a claim for the injuries they have 

2 suffered. 

3 76. The activities described in Paragraph 75 violate various civil and criminal laws of 

4 California and of the United States; 

5 77. The activities described in Paragraph 75 violate various civil and criminal laws of 

6 California and of the United States, including the duty to report incidents of childhood sexual 

7 abuse as required by Penal Code § 11166; 

8 78. The activities described in Paragraph 75 offend public policy; are immoral, unethical, 

9 oppressive, and unscrupulous; are substantially injurious to persons who utilize the services 

10 described in Paragraph 75; and are undertaken without any valid reason, justification or 

11 motive. 

12 79. Defendants all conducted their business activities in such a way that members ofthe 

13 public are likely to be deceived regarding those business activities. 

14 80. As a result of the acts of unfair competition by Defendants, Plaintiff has suffered, and 

15 continues to suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical 

16 manifestations of emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, 

17 humiliation, and loss of enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; 

18 was prcvented and will continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiff's daily activities 

19 and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of 

20 earnings and earning capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for 

21 medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these 

22 injuries, Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an arnount in excess ofthe 

23 jurisdictional minimum of this Comt. 

24 81. As a further result of the above-described conduct by Defendants Plaintiff further 

25 requests injunctive relief prohibiting Defendants from, among other things: allowing their 

26 pedophilic/ephebophilic agents to have any unsupervised contact with children; transferring 

27 their pedophilic/ephebophilic agents to communities whose citizens are unaware of the risk to 

28 children posed by said agents; failing/refusing to disclose to and/or concealing from the 
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1 general public and/or law enforcement when Defendants have transferred a 

2 pedophilic/ephebophilic agent into their midst; failing/refusing to disclose to and/or 

3 concealing from law enforcement and/or the general public the identities and the criminal 

4 acts of their pedophilic/ephebophilic agents; failing/refusing to disclose to and/or concealing 

5 from the public and/or law enforcement reports, complaints, accusations or allegations of acts 

6 of childhood sexual abuse committed by Defendants' current or former agents; insisting that 

7 reports, complaints, accusations or allegations of acts by Defendants' agents be made only in 

8 the context of a penitential communication; and representing to the public that Defendants 

9 have created entities to assist survivors of childhood sexual abuse when in reality Defendants 

10 use such entities to obtain information used to attack survivors who make claims for injuries 

11 caused by that abuse. Defendants should be ordered to stop failing/refusing to disclose to 

12 and/or concealing and instead should identify each and every one of their current and former 

13 agents who have been accused of childhood sexual abuse, the dates of the accusation( s), the 

14 date(s) of the alleged abuse, the location(s) of the alleged abuse, and the accused agents' 

15 assignment histories. 

16 

17 TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

18 FRAUD AND DECEIT 

19 (Against All Defendants) 

20 82. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as if fully set 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

forth herein. 

83. The Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents held 

himself out to Plaintiff as a Roman Catholic Priest, religious brother, religious instructor, 

counselor, school administrator, school teacher, surrogate parent, spiritual mentor, emotional 

mentor, and/or other authority figure. The Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic 

and/or ephebophilic agents represented to Plaintiff and Plaintiff's parents that he would 

counsel and guide Plaintiff with his educational, spiritual, and/or emotional needs. 

84. These representations were made by the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic 
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1 and/or ephebophilic agents with the intent and for the purpose of inducing Plaintiff and 

2 Plaintiffs parents to entrust the educational, spiritual and physical well being of Plaintiff 

3 with the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents. 

4 85. The Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents 

5 misrepresented, concealed or failed to disclose information relating to his true intentions to 

6 Plaintiff and Plaintiffs parents when they entrusted Plaintiff to his care, which were to 

7 sexually molest and abuse Plaintiff. Plaintiff justifiably relied upon the Perpetrator's and 

8 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents' representations. 

9 86. The Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents were 

10 employees, agents, and/or representatives of Defendants. At the time he fraudulently induced 

11 Plaintiff and Plaintiff s parents to entrust the care and physical welfare of Plaintiff to the 

12 Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, the Perpetrator and 

13 Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents were acting within the course and 

14 scope of their employment with Defendants. 

15 87. Defendants are vicariously liable for the fraud and deceit of the Perpetrator and 

16 Defendants' other agents. 

17 88. As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to 

18 suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of 

19 emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of 

20 enjoyment oflife; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; was prevented and will 

21 continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiffs daily activities and obtaining the full 

22 enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of eamings and eaming 

23 capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and 

24 psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these injuries, 

25 Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of the 

26 jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

27 89. In addition, when Plaintiff finally discovered the fraud of Defendants, and continuing 

28 thereafter, Plaintiff experienced recurrences of the above-described injuries. In addition, 
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1 when Plaintiff finally discovered the fraud of Defendants, and continuing thereafter, Plaintiff 

2 experienced extreme and severe mental and emotional distress that Plaintiff had been the 

3 victim of the Defendants' fraud; that Plaintiff had not been able to help other minors being 

4 molested because of the fraud; and that Plaintiff had not been able because of the fraud to 

5 receive timely medical treatment needed to deal with the problems Plaintiff had suffered and 

6 continues to suffer as a result of the molestations. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

PREMISES LIABILITY 

(Against All Defendants) 

11 90. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs of this First Amended Complaint as iffully set 

12 forth herein. 

13 91. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants were in possession of the property where 

14 the Plaintiff was groomed and assaulted by the Perpetrator, and had the right to manage, use 

15 and control that property. 

16 92. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants knew that the Perpetrator and Defendants' 

17 other pedophilic andlor ephebophilic agents had a history of committing sexual assaults 

18 against children, and that any child at, among other locations in Santa Barbara, the Mission 

19 and St. Anthony's, was at risk to be sexually assaulted by the Perpetrator and Defendants' 

20 other pedophilic andlor ephebophilic agents. 

21 93. Defendants knew or should have known that the Mission and St. Anthony's had a 

22 history of grooming of andlor sexual assaults against children committed by the Perpetrator 

23 andlor Defendants' other pedophilic andlor ephebophilic agents and that any child at, among 

24 other locations in Santa Barbara, the Mission and St. Anthony's, was at risk to be sexually 

25 assaulted. It was foreseeable to Defendants that the Perpetrator and Defendants' other 

26 pedophilic andlor ephebophilic agents would sexually assault children if they continued to 

27 allow the Perpetrator andlor Defendants' other pedophilic andlor ephebophilic agents to 

28 teach, supervise, instruct, care for, and have custody and control of andlor contact with 
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1 

2 

3 

4 
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20 
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28 

children. 

94. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants knew or should have known the 

Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents were repeatedly 

committing sexual assaults against children. 

95. It was foreseeable to Defendants that the sexual assaults being committed by the 

Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents would continue if 

Defendants continued to allow the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

ephebophilic agents to teach, supervise, instruct, care for, and have custody of and/or contact 

with young children. 

96. Because it was foreseeable that the sexual assaults being committed by the 

Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents would continue if 

Defendants continued to allow them to teach, supervise, instruct, care for, and have custody 

of and/or contact with young children, Defendants owed a duty of care to all children, 

including Plaintiff, exposed to the Perpetrator and/or Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 

ephebophilic agents. Defendants also owed a heightened duty of care to all children, 

including Plaintiff, because of their young age. 

97. By allowing the Perpetrator and/or Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic 

agents to teach, supervise, instruct, care for, and have custody of and/or contact with young 

children, and by failing to warn children and their families of the threat posed by the 

Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents, Defendants 

breached their duty of care to all children, including Plaintiff. 

98. Defendants negligently used and managed the Mission and St. Anthony's, and created 

a dangerous condition and an unreasonable risk of harm to children by allowing the 

Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or ephebophilic agents to teach, supervise, 

instruct, care for and have custody of and/or contact with young children at, among other 

locations, the Mission and St. Anthony's. 

99. As a result of the dangerous conditions created by Defendants, numerous children 

were sexually assaulted by the Perpetrator and Defendants' other pedophilic and/or 
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1 ephebophilic agents. 

2 100. The dangerous conditions created by Defendants were the proximate cause of 

3 Plaintiffs injuries and damages. 

4 101. As a result of these dangerous conditions, Plaintiff has suffered, and continues to 

5 suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of 

6 emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of 

7 enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer spiritually; was prevented and will 

8 continue to be prevented from performing Plaintiffs daily activities and obtaining the full 

9 enjoyment of life; has sustained and will continue to sustain loss of eamings and eanling 

10 capacity; and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and 

11 psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling. As a proximate result of these injuries, 

12 Plaintiff has suffered general and special damages in an amount in excess of the 

13 jurisdictional minimum of this Court. 

14 

15 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for damages; injunctive relief; attomey's fees and costs; 

16 statutory/civil penalties according to law; and such other relief as the court deems appropriate 

17 and just. 

18 

19 JURY DEMAND 

20 Plaintiff demands a jury trial on all issues so triable. 

21 

22 DATE: 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

October 5, 2009 
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·ttl • 
f. ... . ~." ....... 

The Reverend James '1'. Booth 
North Alnerioan College, 
Via. dell 11mil ta ,30 
Rome. Italy 

Dear Father Boothl 

We 'IIll1 indeed he grate1'ul to have the benefit 01' your 'pr.!."s~ IIrl.ni.stratiOll/l 
tor lIh"t loolal In:e a possible three lIlonthe. lle.fore coming to a final. decia:l.on, 
h01rever. 'Will you ld.n~ check the possible cost at 'a tr.!.p by boat or plane to 
the Untted states and frolll New Yon.: to San DiegQ7 You under"tand. of collrn, 
that nth our lilnited resotu:ces we must watch the overhead. ' 

Please .ned over the inclosed pctition end note tlle dU'ficultiell that contront 
us in regard to the t.mure of the Franciecan Fathers in Banning and B08UlllOllt. 

" 

1'he tact is that the majority of Francisoan trieste are not trained tor par.!.eh 
work. Last smmner a col!Jllittee 01' sollte 1'O'Ill'te<n parlsldonere, representing the' 
rank and .:file 01' the Frecious Blood Parieh in Banning, made a tr.!.p to San DiegQ , , 
to poti tion that a dioce,san priest replace tlle Franciscan Father who, al.thOugh .. 
good pr.!.est, ".me too old to de &n;Yi:lring". 'l'hill group pointed out that the 
diocesan priests had built churches and schoole ell around thelll but their par.!.1lb. 
had made no tr0gress 111 thin the last tifiy years - all of which 18 on:q too tNe. 

Another angle that 1e 01' :I.!llportsnce. 'rhe late 'Archbishop Cantwell obtained a llone­
plac~tor the Franoieosn Fathers to enjoy at Banning, J3eaumont and other pariahea 
because 01' their ld.ll1ns:nesB at that time to acoept the Indian lliBsiollll in this ' 
Diocelle. Over a year ago, the Franciscan Fathers gave up tit., Indian lIle&iOIlll on 
the plea that their 'Fathers 'Were ne~ded in China. ' , 

During the thit:tsen years !d.noe this Dioceee ,..0.8 ere<;lted1. to IV 01111 perso~ 
knowledge, the Santa Barhara Province of the Franoieoen Yathera has used WI 
DiOC:a=e as a. dumping ground tor their 1I10ral., lItentu and phySical. problema. It 
bellBll1B neoessary tor lIle 8OIItO tiJne ago to demond the 1I1:thdrmral. of one llde1'it 
8.fter another. To be "Peoifio, in a lDOre recent case, they sent a man 1'4lose 
heal tb had broken in China - Father Fromanuel - Illl(\ lIho had never had a parieh 
in the Untted States before to take oharge of the Precious Blood Pariah in 
Banning. He has not only tailed but he has caused a decided tift :In the parUh 
tbere as the people are IIll. on edge through laolc of experience, ilIIprudenoe and 
6U.dden ohange or judgclIlent regarding the purchase' of property tor the proposed 
school. The tact is that the pari sh has to be di:teoted 1'rom tllis ChAncel:')' because 
the inoumbent there is :lncOlZIpetent. Severcl "seks ago we l'equested the Provincial. 
to rentove him and to 'replaoe him ld th an experienced, COIlIpOtent pastOr. 'nle Very 
Reverend Provincial Augustine Hobrecht called here yesterday and requested IIIOre 
time beoause he h!id no priest aVailable to send to Banning. In tlle lIlllant1llle, 
religion suf.fers. Note copies of inclosed letters .from two Francisoans 1'4l0 had 
parishes in tbis Diocese. 



~'."" 
'l'he Reverend J_ T. Booth 
April 26, 19$0 - 112 

Mtel' studpng the matter, 'Will you ld.ndly advise me regal'(!i.na a Canonist in 
llolll$ l¥ho through experience snd other qualities wu1d be 'UIe beat to represent' 
me in petition1nLr th.e Congregation to set aside th.e Beneplac1tUII and restcn-e 

~'.' 

the 1:IlC parishes Of. B8.ll!lin« and BeaUlllOllt to th.e D.I.ocellO ~OI' th.s good ot rell.g:\.ollo 

About tw:l years ago the Jniasion aOl'Oss the tracks tor ll$ldoans in Bea1l!:lont 1IU', 
Y<l'ecked by an earthquake. Since that tilr,e we have been begging and pleading 
with th.e pasto~ :in charge to alISClllb1e SOIllekind ot an outline 1'01' the reb"ilding 
ot the l1e:xicllll Ui.,sj.on, but'fl\! can't even get a response to OUl' letters. I 
asked for tho removal. ot the sick priest the Fl'llUCiaceIle had sent to Bea=t ' 
and now it bcoomes neoessary to l"lquest tho removal ot his 8UOOe880r. It is the 
SBme old etory. '!he 'hllllc!.SCans Ililn)l~ do not have IIIell trained tor this 1'I01'k. ' 

lq tirlrt th.ought was !f th.eae l!Ultwu cC1lld be j:Q:'esented to the present FranoiPCan 
General he might consider giving up the tw purlshe8 o~ Be~t and ~ .... 
'!h€V still have two other parishes - one in San llieco and one in l"ort Yuma. Both 
have been poorly sta1'~ed and have been op1rit~ dead tar the past thirteen ':, 
years to m;r porsonaJ. lmowledge. ,In Old To'Ml, Boo Dieao, ~ have tried to flet ~ , 
Fran?iscan Fathors to build Ii/. parochial sohool. Durlng World War n they pu1'- : 
ohased a vast amount ot l.an1 adjoining their pl'O~ but got :l.t tied up 1>7 leUII 
tor government. properly. It th.ey had built a school when reque!'f.ed. it woUld hnve 
been paid for now. It you think it wise to request the San l:\!.eSO p."U"1sh, that 
could be in~uded in our petition. It is indeed moat regrettable that ti1.ese 
pbrishes ""l"il g;l.VEn to the hsncisoans because they are absolutely needed for our' 
own Diocesan priesta in viem or the .fact that the intense heat ot Imperial Vallq 
mld the Coachell.a Villay requirae a change after tlro or three years for 'the 
priests wo serve in those di.ftioult Cllmas. 

You IlUl"Oly Bet. the 'picture and ;yuu oan be n ~at help to US in ooUaboratLUfl , 
,II. th O:1e ot the lendinll C,monists in ROllUl to adjust th.iII ditfioultGr. It, atter' 
due consideration, the Very Ilavorend !lenoral declines to release the parishes " 
under consideration, then you nnd thG Canoniat retained could c<;q)leto a potLt:I.On 
to thG Congregation'that handles these mo.tters. It is possible that • Y9U 1IiU 
x:equire more details betore 'Whipping the casa into tinal shape .for presentat.!.OIlo 

With Idnd!lat regarns nm renewed apprsc1ationl 

Devotedl,y your servant in Christ, 

Bishop or San Diego. 

k 


